
Regular Council Meeting Agenda March 26, 2024, 6:30pm  

 
 

AGENDA 

Bentley Town Council  

Tuesday March 26, 2024 

6:30pm Regular Meeting of Council 

 

 
 

1. Call to Order  
 

2. Indigenous Acknowledgement 
 
“We acknowledge that we are meeting on Treaty 6 Territory and Home of Metis 
Nation Region 3, on land that is part of a historic agreement involving mutuality 
and respect. We recognize all the many First Nations, Metis, Inuit, and non-First 
Nations whose footsteps have marked these lands.” 

 
3. Amendments & Acceptance of Agenda 

 
4. Adoption of Previous Minutes:  

 
a) Regular Meeting of Council March 12, 2024 
 

5. Financial: 
 

a) Prepaid Cheque Listing – Cheques No. 20240167 to 20240208 
b) Council Remuneration – February 2024 

 
6. New Business 

 
a) Delegation Susan Samson – Sylvan Lake Urgent Care Health Foundation 
b) Bentley Arena Ice Plant Replacement 

 
7. Correspondence 

 
a) Lacombe County Council Highlights – Regular Meeting Mar 14, 2024 
b) Lacombe County Council Highlights – Special Meeting Mar 14, 2024 
c) Lacombe County – Volunteer Farm Vehicle Safety Checks 
d) Assessment Model Review – Minister Ric McIver 

 
8. Other Business 

 
a) Urban Hens (Councillor Hansen) 

 
9. Adjournment       



Regular Council Meeting Minutes March 12, 2024  

 

Minutes of the Regular of the Council of the Town of Bentley 

 March 12, 2024 

 

 
Date and Place  Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Council of the Town of Bentley 

held Tuesday, March 12, 2024, at 6:30 p.m., in the Bentley Municipal Office. 
 

In Attendance Mayor Greg Rathjen 
Deputy Mayor Grimsdale 

   Councillor Valiquette 
   Councillor Eastman 
   Councillor Hansen 
   CAO, Marc Fortais 
 
Call to Order 
 
Regular Meeting Mayor Rathjen called the regular council meeting to order at 6:30pm 

 
 
Indigenous  
Acknowledgement “We acknowledge that we are meeting on Treaty 6 Territory and 

Home of Metis Nation Region 3, on land that is part of a historic agreement 
involving mutuality and respect. We recognize all the many First Nations, 
Metis, Inuit, and non-First Nations whose footsteps have marked these 
lands.” 

Read by Mayor Rathjen 
 
 

Agenda 

Motion 61/2024 Moved by Mayor Rathjen, “THAT the agenda of the 
March 12, 2024, Regular Meeting of Mayor and Council be amended to 
include Sylvan Lake Urgent Care Health Foundation as a topic of discussion 
under other business.” 

        Carried 

 

Motion 62/2024 Moved by Deputy Mayor Grimsdale, “THAT the 
amended agenda of the March 12, 2024, be accepted.” 

        Carried 

 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes March 12, 2024  

 

Previous Minutes   
Motion 63/2024 Moved by Councillor Valiquette, “THAT the minutes of 
the February 27, 2024, Regular Meeting of Council be accepted.” 
 
        Carried 

  

Financial  
a) Prepaid Cheque Listing – Cheques No. 20240121 to 20240166 

Motion 64/2024 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT Cheques No. 
20240121 to 20240166 be received for information.” 

           Carried 

 

Unfinished Business 

a) Oxford Park Washroom Quote 
 

Motion 65/2024 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT Mayor and 
Council received the Oxford Park Washroom Quote as information, and do 
not decide regarding whether to proceed, until further information is provided 
regarding the condition of the Arena Ice Plant and costs to rectify the issues 
currently being faced. “ 

        Carried 

 

New Business 

a) Monkey Top Fire Cost Recovery 

It should be noted that Councillor Hansen declared a potential conflict of 
interest related to her relationship as a previous employee of the Monkey 
Top. She indicated that if they were to reopen, she would most likely be 
employed again and therefore she stated she would not vote on any motion 
or discuss the issue and she vacated her chair to sit in the audience and 
watch the discussion.  

Motion 66/2024 Moved by Deputy Mayor Grimsdale, “THAT a short 
recess be taken to allow time to draft a new motion regarding the Monkey 
Top Cost Recovery, time was 6:55pm. 

        Carried 

Mayor Rathjen Called the meeting back in session at 6:59pm 

 

Motion 67/2024 Moved by Councillor Valiquette, “THAT Mayor and 
Council authorize CAO Marc Fortais to issue an invoice to the property 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes March 12, 2024  

owner of the property located at 5002 50th Ave (Lot 4, Block 18, Plan 5085 
ET) in the amount of $40,439.27; AND 

THAT the invoice to be issued is intended to recover costs of fire response 
(staff time and equipment costs invoiced to the Town of Bentley by 
Lacombe County) throughout January 2024 and in relation to the Monkey 
Top Fire, which occurred on said property and for which the recoverable 
costs have been charged in accordance with Bylaw 128/2008 from the Town 
of Bentley and Bylaw 1337/21 Lacombe County; AND 

THAT the amount invoiced and payable by the property owner be payable 
within 120 days from the date of issue of the invoice; AND 

THAT if the invoice remains unpaid after 120 days, the amount be 
transferred to the associated property tax account in accordance with the 
Municipal Government Act, RSA 2000, Chapter M-26 of the revised Statutes 
of Alberta, Section 553(1)(g); AND 

THAT if the current owner of the Monkey Top moved forward to rebuild the 
Monkey Top or a similar business, the Town of Bentley will refund the 
amount of $40,439.27 (the fire response cost recovery invoiced); AND 

THAT this amount only be refunded when a final occupancy permit has been 
approved and issued.  

        Carried 

 

b) Land Use Bylaw – Proposed Changes – Summary 

A presentation was provided by Parkland Community Planning Services 
(PCPS) regarding the proposed changes to the Land Use Bylaw. These 
changes include: structural changes, definitions updates, development 
authority and subdivision authority definitions revised, administrative 
changes, secondary suites language improvements, short term rentals and 
air bnb, shipping container regulations, direct control district, murals, fabric 
covered structures improved language, outdoor storage in non-residential 
district regulations, site grading requirements refined, temporary use, 
parking requirements, new signage, change R2A district to RG district, wind 
energy and solar energy language improvements, sign regulations, hot tubs, 
stie projections more clearly defined, development permit fees and 
enforcement.  

It is the intent of administration to host a public information session to 
discuss these changes and seek further input prior to bringing the bylaw 
before Mayor and Council for 1st reading. In addition, there will be a public 
hearing in advance of 2nd and 3rd reading to further provide the opportunity 
for additional public input. 

Motion 68/2024 Moved by Deputy Mayor Grimsdale, “THAT the 
presentation provided by Parkland Community Planning Services (PCPS) be 
accepted as information.” 

        Carried 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes March 12, 2024  

Correspondence 

a) Lacombe County Council Highlights February 22, 2024 
b) Media Release – Bentley Council Issues Notice of Intent to Annex 

Lands 
 

Motion 69/2024 Moved by Councillor Valiquette, “THAT 
correspondence item a) to b) be accepted as information.” 

        Carried 

Other Business 

a) Extended Producer Responsibility 

Administration provided some general information regarding the transition to 
extended producer responsibility. The main goal of this initiative is to shift 
the costs of recycling to the consumer utilizing the product. At some point 
there will be no cost to the taxpayer in the municipality for the recycling 
services that currently exist at the transfer site. These costs will be passed 
onto the consumer and born by the producer. Meetings will begin to take 
place in 2024 with Alberta Recycling, Town of Bentley and LRWSC. 

No motion was made. 

 

b) Urgent Care Sylvan  

Mayor Rathjen provided an overview of conversations with Susan Samson 
the chair of the Urgent Care Sylvan Lake Health Foundation. Ms. Samson 
would like to have a conversation with Mayor and Council regarding why 
they should have representation on the foundation. 

 

Motion 70/2024 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT administration 
invite Ms. Samson to come to a future council meeting to present additional 
information on the Urgent Care Sylvan Lake Health Foundation.” 

        Carried 

 

Adjournment  
 Mayor Rathjen adjourned the March 12, 2024, Regular Council Meeting 

at 8:19pm 
  
         
  
_________________________    _________________________ 

Mayor Greg Rathjen      CAO Marc Fortais 









2023 Year in Review 
Sylvan Lake and Area Urgent Care Committee 

 
 
Since opening in June 2018, the Sylvan Lake Advanced Ambulatory Care Service (AACS) has been 
providing diagnosis and treatment for non-life-threatening injuries and illnesses for residents and visitors 
of Sylvan Lake.  AACS continues to see high volumes of patients with 18, 386 patients using this service 
in 2023. The Urgent Care Committee is a group of 11 volunteers who raise money to support the 
operations of the AACS. The following is an overview of the activities of the committee in 2023. 
 
 
Medical Equipment Purchases  
In 2023, an Oxygen Concentrator valued at $2,467.00 and a Broselow Cart valued at $3,500.00 were 
purchased and are in place at the AACS.  Equipment or services are purchased as required to support 
the AACS and its staff in delivering healthcare.     
 
 
Fundraising 
Tim Hortons Smile Cookie 
A major fundraising effort is the Tim Horton’s Smile Cookie Campaign that took place in May 2023.  
During this week-long campaign, cookies were sold to Tim Horton’s patrons and local business. The 
success of this campaign is credited to over 100 volunteers from the community, local businesses, fire, 
RCMP, Town Bylaw, local youth, service clubs and elected officials who spent a total of 48 hours in the 
drive-thru promoting the sale of cookies. The cookie sale raised $18,146.66 for the future purchase of 
medical equipment for AACS.   
 
Smile Cookie will continue in May 2024 and we are currently seeking volunteers for both cookie sales on 
site at Tim Hortons, cookie decorators during the campaign.  Or if you have a flair for details, we would 
love to have you join us for the organization of the volunteers and hands on management during the week 
of cookie sales.   Email Susan Samson   susamson56@gmail.com          
 
Golf Tournament 
The Sylvan Lake and District Lion’s Club Golf Tournament held in July 2023 was another resounding 
success.  Started in 2015, the tournament continues to attract golfers to Meadowlands Golf Course to 
enjoy the game, camaraderie, food and support local community causes.  In 2023 the tournament 
donated to the Urgent Care Committee and to the newly formed Lions Seniors Independent Affordable 
Housing Project.  In 2024 the tournament will be held on July 5th.  For further information contact: 
Klaas Van Veller   kandmvanveller@yahoo.com 
 
AHS 50/50 
AHS employees have a 50/50 payroll raffle where employees choose a facility they would like the 50/50 
proceeds to be directed to.  In 2023 $21,688.01 was directed to be sent to the Urgent Care Committee for 
the future purchase of equipment at the AACS.  Another great reason to thank a healthcare employee! 
 
Donations 
Urgent Care regularly receives donations directed to the operations and equipment purchases to enhance 
and support AACS.  Each donation received receives a CRA tax receipt that can be used as a deduction 
on your income tax.  Donations can be made out to and mailed to: 
Urgent Care Committee, Box 8985, Sylvan Lake, AB, T4S 1S6 
 
Nurse practitioners added to Sylvan Lake ambulatory care service 
Two nurse practitioners have been added to the care team at the Sylvan Lake Advanced Ambulatory Care 
Service, as part of ongoing efforts to support the health and wellness of community residents. 
  
The nurse practitioners are working alongside nursing staff to provide care and support to residents in 
much the same way as physicians now do. Nurse practitioners are registered nurses with advanced 

mailto:kandmvanveller@yahoo.com


knowledge and skills who can provide health promotion and primary care through the diagnosis and 
treatment of acute illnesses and chronic conditions. 
  
In a community-based setting, such as this advanced ambulatory care service, they will perform 
comprehensive assessment and diagnosis (including the ordering and interpretation of tests), prescribe 
medications, and provide specialist referrals for patients of all ages. 
 
Sylvan Lake and Area Health Foundation 
The UCC is taking steps to form a Health Foundation.  The overarching purpose of the health foundation 
is to be able to solicit and receive gifts, financial or otherwise for the benefit of the AACS.  The Health 
Foundation would have its own board of directors including one seat for AHS. All donations would be 
eligible for a charitable receipt.  These functions are currently performed on our behalf by the 
Stettler Health Foundation and we have outgrown their accounting service. 
 
If you are interested in applying to be a director on the Sylvan Lake and Area Health Foundation, please 
contact Susan Samson.  Susamson56@gmail.com 
 
 
Sylvan Lake Health Professional Attraction and Retention Committee or SLhPARC 
SLhPARC was formed in 2023 and the committee’s purpose is to recruit and retain healthcare 
professionals in our community.  SLhPARC was funded by a generous anonymous donation and one-time 
matching funds from the Urgent Care Committee.  New family doctors relocating to Sylvan Lake will help 
insure that AACS is open 7 days a week from 7:30am-10:00pm.  To date, SLhPARC, working closely with 
AHS has attracted 5 International Medical Graduates to Sylvan Lake.  Of the 5 doctors, 3 are currently 
practising in Sylvan Lake medical clinics and all the new doctors are contracted to work at AACS.  This 
will help reduce the staffing pressures experienced at AACS.  
 
On behalf of the volunteer Urgent Care Committee, we would like to thank Sylvan Lake and Area for your 
continued support. If you would like further information or would like to get involved, please reach out to 
us. 
 
Susan Samson 
Chair 
Urgent Care Committee 
Sylvan Lake and Area 
 
 
 
  



March 26, 2024,             New Business – Arena Ice Plant Replacement 

 
 
 
Agenda Date:  March 26, 2024 
Agenda Item: Arena Ice Plant Replacement 
       
 
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION 
 
THAT Mayor and Council authorize CAO Marc Fortais to award a contract to Red Deer Heating and 
Refrigeration to construct a new ice plant for the Bentley Arena to a maximum value not to exceed $600,000; 
AND 
 
THAT this will include all costs including any required engineered drawings, reviews, permitting and code 
compliance, and ground preparation for the site; AND 
 
THAT CAO Marc Fortais formally request and secure a grant from Lacombe County for 50% of the funding to 
support the utilization of the facility by county residents; AND 
 
THAT should Lacombe County not approve funding to support the ice plant replacement, that CAO Marc 
Fortais undertake to obtain debenture funding to support the ice plant replacement to be paid back through 
future LGFF and/or CCBF Grant Funding in 2025; AND 
 
THAT the remainder of the funds for the project be allocated from 2024 LGFF and/or  CCBF Grant funding 
  
SUMMARY & BACKGROUND 
 
The Bentley Arena was constructed in 1965 and has operated since it was opened. The arena supports a 
multitude of community activities, including the Bentley Farmers Market, The Curling Club, Bentley Minor 
Hockey, The Bentley Rodeo, Parkland Hockey League, Bentley Skating Club, Bentley School Hockey 
Academy, and a variety of other bookings from organizations throughout Lacombe County, Red Deer, and 
Sylvan Lake. The Arena is an important asset for the community and attracts tourism and supports the local 
business community by drawing people that spend money in support of those local businesses. 
 
Administration for the Town of Bentley has had concerns regarding the operation of the Slab and the ice 
plant, and the continued ability to be able to make ice due to imminent failures of both the slab & plant. The 
arena slab has had problems in the past and due to the significant cost of a full replacement, only a partial 
replacement from the end of the faceoff circle to the East end boards was done in 2007 at a cost of 
$185,432.00. This partial replacement has continued to cause issues with the separate sections of the slab 
moving differently and causing a significant difference in elevation between the two pieces of slab. As a 
result, the Town asked Stantec Consulting to undertake a review of the slab and provide an order of 
magnitude cost estimate to facilitate the consideration of seeking out funding for a full slab replacement. 
(Attachment #1) The movement in the slab is between 2” and 3” and has resulted in a crack opening in the 
slab along the line of movement, which is causing spalling of the concrete and additional cracks forming in 
the new slab.  



March 26, 2024,             New Business – Arena Ice Plant Replacement 

 
Although a partial slab replacement is again an option discussed in the report, it is not recommended due to 
the issues that we are currently experiencing. As well, contractors have indicated that they would not 
warranty a partial slab replacement as they feel expected lifespan would only be two years. In addition, 
issues such as failure of piping connections between slabs, cracking and or settling of the existing slab and 
new slab portion, failure of structural connections between the two slabs and differing ground conditions can 
result with a partial slab replacement. 
 
Additionally, the Ice Plant in the Arena has a stamp of 1974 and only serves a single ice slab. The Curling 
Rink has a separate ice plant, and both are served by a single evaporative condenser outside the ice plants. 
Originally the refrigerant was R22, then changed to R407c and is now using R448A.  
 
The ice plant continues to experience failures of the refrigerant piping and the chilled brine piping and as a 
result in the past two months we have spent over $18,000 in repairs. The entire refrigeration plant is past its 
serviceable operational life span, which is typically around 20 years based on industry standard, however 
with regular maintenance, these plants can last around 40 years. Currently our plant is 50 years old. While 
the plant is still operational, we continue to experience failures and each time must replace the freon at a 
cost of around $3,000 to $5,000 an occurrence. In addition, the plant is very inefficient when compared to a 
new plant and parts and servicing of the plant can become more difficult as parts become harder to find.  
 
It should be noted that the town and the County have supported investment in the Arena throughout its 
lifecycle and overall, the building is in great shape, items such as: 
 

• Improved drainage around the building (2008) 
• Replacement of lobby roof and North Wall insulated building panels (2008) 
• Replacement of concrete on north side & under and behind spectator stands (2008) 
• Replacement all exit doors (2008) 
• Replacement West Wall insulated building panels (2009) 
• Replacement 4 furnaces (2009) 
• New score clock, replace overhead heaters, replace compressor, and brine components (2011) 
• New rubber flooring, new energy efficient lighting over ice surface, replace toilets, sinks, urinals, 

epoxy shower walls and floors, new flooring in lobby washrooms (2013) 
• New Arena/Curling Rink Roof (2014) 
• Concrete Replacement (Ice resurfacer entrance to ice surface) (2015) 
• Ongoing maintenance, painting, flooring, ice plant (2016-2020) 
• New northeasterly loading ramp and disability access project (2021) 
• New vestibule East side (2022) 
• Replaced door hardware and doors (2023) 

 
Investment in the facility for the past 15 years has been more than $1,500,000 and has resulted in a great 
facility that is continuing to support the community of Bentley, the County, and the Central Alberta Region.  
 
Town of Bentley Administration feels based on the investment in the facility to date and from a fiscal 
responsibility perspective it makes sense to continue to invest in the arena, replace the slab, and ice plant to 
preserve the longevity of the asset for the next 25 to 30 years. Consideration to build a new facility is not 
fiscally responsible at this time due to the small tax base and given the investment to date in the existing 
facility. Replacements such as the slab and ice plant, along with the continued maintenance of the building 



March 26, 2024,             New Business – Arena Ice Plant Replacement 

will continue to meet the needs of the community for many years to come, until such a time that Bentley’s tax 
base grows and is able to bear the tax implications of building a new facility.  
 
As mentioned above in 2021, Town of Bentley Administration undertook an engineering study of the Arena. 
This study has been used as a basis and cost estimate to submit grant applications to Canada Green and 
Inclusive Buildings Program in 2022 and to Canada Community Revitalization Fund in 2021. The Town of 
Bentley has not received any federal support to fund the increasingly critical repairs to the facility. In fact, we 
were left for more than 19 months with no answer from the federal government and no response from 
Minister Sean Fraser, despite numerous requests from Mayor Rathjen and MP Blaine Calkins to his office.  
 
The estimate in the study had indicated that an ice plant replacement would be between $1,443,000 for an 
ammonia plant and $1,526,000 for a CO2 plant. Neither of these explored further options with R448. 
 
Recently through discussions with Red Deer Refrigeration, our contractor that works on emergency repairs to 
the plant, we discussed other options including building a new plant with R448. This type of refrigerant is a 
new, low hazard, non-flammable refrigerant, which has a low GWP (Global warming potential) rating and is 
not currently mandated to be phased out. Red Deer Refrigeration has built several ice plants including most 
recently, Lougheed Curling Club, and Forestburg Curling Club. The feedback from these clubs regarding Red 
Deer Refrigeration and the installation and service related to these plants was excellent.  
 
The price point for the construction and installation of a new ice plant on skid and placed on screw piles is 
approximately $600,000. This includes engineered and stamped drawings ensuring code compliance, 
removal and replacement of the existing plant, disposal of brine and equipment, ground preparation and 
screw piles and to also includes the install of two heat recovery units that can capture the excess heat from 
the plant and be used to heat the arena for spectators. Upon review by our engineers, they have indicated 
that we will not find a better price and that this will provide a solution for the ice plant for the next 25 to 30 
years.  
 
Administration feels that this is a cost-effective solution to ensure uninterrupted operation of the ice plant, in 
alignment with the building life and also will allow Bentley to experience growth with other initiatives such as 
the Bentley Southeast Area Structure Plan. In 25 to 30 years the conversation regarding a new facility can 
return if there is tax base expansion and continued growth in the Town and County, which will result in better 
affordability for a new facility. Administration is recommending that the Town of Bentley enter into a contact 
with Red Deer Refrigeration for the replacement of the ice plant and to fund this contract through the LGFF 
and CCBF funds allocated to the Town along with a grant request to Lacombe County. Should the grant 
request not be approved by the County, the town would seek a short-term debenture to be paid back through 
future grant funds from LGFF and CCBF in 2025. 
 
BUDGET AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 

• Engineering/Design, review of buildings and systems plus stamped drawings  $  10,000 
• Remove and Replace Ice Plant        $410,000 
• Brine and Equipment Disposal        $  39,000 
• Ground Preparation and Screw Piles        $  20,000 
• Install two heat recovery units        $  42,000 

     Sub-Total           $521,000 
      Contingency (10%)         $  52,100 
      GST (5%)           $  26,550 
 Total Project Cost          $599,650 



March 26, 2024,             New Business – Arena Ice Plant Replacement 

RATIONAL FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 

• This is a cost-effective solution to extend the ice plant life for the next 25 to 30 years in alignment with 
building lifecycle. 
 

• Under the New West Trade Partnership Agreement for procurement a government entity should bid 
out work in excess of $200,000. However, there is an exception, where goods are required to 
respond to an unforeseeable situation of urgency. Our plant is failing and: 
 

o The ice plant continues to fail and is costing us a significant amount of money to repair each 
time and it is beyond its useful life. It will continue to fail. This creates interruption for minor 
hockey and other users who need a stable facility to encourage usage and bookings.  
 

o Time is of the essence, we are wrapping up the ice season and so are other rinks and 
facilities, spring and summer maintenance and programs are beginning, equipment lead time 
is an issue and if we do not move forward, immediately, we will lose the window of opportunity 
to complete this project this season in time to not impact Fall ice season and users such as 
minor hockey. 

 
• The proposed estimate is a fraction of the cost estimate by our engineer for a CO2 or Ammonia Plant 

and the refrigerant proposed R448A is not currently mandated to be phased out, which means that 
realistically it should be good for a long time to come. Even if it were listed to be phased out in the 
future, there would need to be years of transition time.  
 

• Addressing the ice plant now, will mean we can focus on obtaining grants or lobbying the province to 
provide support for the slab, but it will provide some stability for making ice, will reduce operational 
costs and power consumption and reduce green house gas for the facility.  
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1) Bentley Arena Engineering Study 2021 
 
 
 
        _________________________________ 
        Marc Fortais, CAO 





























 
HIGHLIGHTS OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

MARCH 14, 2024 
  
 
POLICE GOVERNANCE SURVEY 
The proposed response to the Provincial Policy Advisory Questionnaire was endorsed by Council and 
will be submitted on behalf of Lacombe County.   
 
ALUS LACOMBE PUBLIC ADVISORY COMMITTEE APPOINTMENT 
The request from Alternative Land Use Services (ALUS) Lacombe to appoint an Agricultural Service 
Board Member to the ALUS Lacombe Public Advisor Committee was received for information. 
 
RICHARDS OIL AND GAS OUTSTANDING PROPERTY TAX PAYMENT PLAN REQUEST 
A request by Richards Oil and Gas for the the proposed cancellation of late payment penalties and 
levies in the amount of $42,494.54 in exchange for payment of their outstanding tax balance of 
$58,513, did not receive Council approval. 
 
CENTRAL ALBERTA BUSINESS ADVANTAGE SUMMIT 2024 
Council received information regarding the upcoming Central Alberta Business Advantage Summit 
2024, which will be held April 22 to 26, 2024 in Olds.  The purpose of the Summit is to invite small 
business owners, entrepreneurs, and investors from India into the Central Alberta community to 
encourage dialogue and foster a deeper understanding of markets, challenges, and opportunities in the 
area.  Representatives of Council and staff will attend the event. 
 
TOWN OF BENTLEY NOTICE OF ANNEXATION 
Subsequent to Council’s recent adoption of the Southeast Bentley Area Structure Plan, the Town of 
Bentley wishes to proceed with the annexation of the lands within the plan area.  The February 27, 
2024 Notice of Annexation from the Town of Bentley was received for information.   
 
LACOMBE FISH AND GAME ASSOCIATION AWARDS AND GALA 
Representatives of Council will attend the upcoming Lacombe Fish and Game Association Awards and 
Gala event on April 13, 2024. 
 
MEETING WITH RCMP AT RMA SPRING CONVENTION 
Council will meet with members of the RCMP on March 20, 2024, during the upcoming RMA Spring 
Convention, to discuss topics including restorative justice, crime reduction, community safety and 
wellbeing, copper theft, and organized crime in rural areas. 
 
RMA SPRING CONVENTION RESOLUTIONS 
Council reviewed the proposed RMA Spring Convention resolutions. The Convention will be held in 
Edmonton from March 18 to 20, 2024. 
 
BYLAW NO. 1409/24  
Bylaw No. 1409/24, a bylaw of Lacombe County for the purpose of amending the Village of 
Alix/Lacombe County Intermunicipal Development Plan received first reading and approval to hold a 
public hearing.  A public hearing for Bylaw No. 1409/24 will be held on April 11, 2024 commencing at 
9:00 a.m. at Lacombe County Council Chambers. 
 
INDUSTRIAL SUBDIVISION – DOW CHEMICAL RAIL YARD EXPANSION 
By resolution of Council, the subdivision application for 9.03 acres of Pt. SW 39-25-W4M was approved 
subject to several conditions. 



                                                                                      
 
 

  

 

 RR 3, Lacombe, AB T4L 2N3 (Tel) 403.782.6601 (Fax) 403.782.3820 www.lacombecounty.com 

64 

 
DAVID THOMPSON SNOW RIDERS’ ASSOCIATION 
Council received a presentation on the activities and initiatives of the David Thompson Snow Riders’ 
Association (DTSRA).   
 
CLIVE SCHOOL PARENT COUNCIL ASSOCIATION 
Council received a presentation from representatives of the Clive School Parent Council Association 
regarding the Clive School Playground project. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Next Regular Council Meeting is 
March 28, 2024 – 9:00 a.m. 

 
Next Committee of the Whole Meeting is 

April 2, 2024 – 9:00 a.m. 
 

Lacombe County Administration Building 
 

**For more details from Lacombe County Council meetings, please refer to the meeting 
minutes. All meeting minutes are posted on the website (www.lacombecounty.com)  

after approval.  

http://www.lacombecounty.com/


 

RR 3, Lacombe, AB T4L 2N3 (Tel) 403.782.6601 (Fax) 403.782.3820 www.lacombecounty.com 

 

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF COUNCIL 
MARCH 14, 2024 

  
 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR BYLAW NOS. 1406/24 AND 1407/24 

A public hearing was held for Bylaw Nos. 1406/24 and 1407/24 pertaining to proposed amendments to 
allow two dwellings on 10+ acre agricultural parcels.  Bylaw No. 1406/24 is a bylaw of Lacombe County 
to amend the Lacombe County Municipal Development Plan, Bylaw No. 1238/17, as it relates to 
general regulations.   Bylaw No. 1407/24 is a bylaw of Lacombe County to amend the Lacombe County 
Land Use Bylaw, Bylaw No. 1237/17, as it relates to general regulations. 
 
Council will consider further action regarding the proposed bylaw amendments at a future Council 
meeting. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Next Regular Council Meeting is 
March 28, 2024 – 9:00 a.m. 

 
Next Committee of the Whole Meeting is 

April 2, 2024 – 9:00 a.m. 
 

Lacombe County Administration Building 
 

**For more details from Lacombe County Council meetings, please refer to the meeting 
minutes. All meeting minutes are posted on the website (www.lacombecounty.com)  

after approval.  

http://www.lacombecounty.com/


 

MEDIA RELEASE 
March 20, 2024 

Lacombe County to host voluntary Farm Vehicle Safety 
checks  
(Lacombe, Alberta – March 20 , 2024) – Lacombe County is excited to announce a two-day voluntary 
farm vehicle safety check event, taking place at our Rainy Creek (April 3) and Tees (April 4) satellite 
public works shops. This initiative is part of our ongoing efforts to enhance the safety and awareness 
within our agricultural industry, while also promoting ‘Vision Zero’—a key component of the Lacombe 
County Traffic Safety Plan. 

‘Vision Zero’ embodies our belief that no loss of life on Alberta’s roads should be considered acceptable. 
By conducting Farm Vehicle Safety checks, we are taking a significant step towards ensuring our 
community remains safe and fostering a positive relationship with our local producers. 

“Our local agricultural producers play a crucial role in our community, and it's imperative that they can 
conduct their operations without the fear of being stranded or, worse, involved in an accident due to 
equipment failure,” said Ray Kawai, Lacombe County Community Peace Officer. “These checks are about 
education and collective effort to enhance road safety for everyone.” 

In Alberta, farm vehicles are held to the same equipment regulations as commercial vehicles. Lacombe 
County’s initiative aims to collaborate with our farming community to not only ensure compliance but 
also promote a positive image of our agricultural sector. 

At the event, Commercial Vehicle Inspectors will be available to conduct thorough safety inspections in 
line with the Commercial Vehicle Safety Alliance standards. Any safety violations identified will be 
detailed in a personalized vehicle inspection report, with guidance provided on necessary repairs. 

Note: Inspection results are indicated on Carrier Profiles of those operating under the authority of a 
Safety Fitness Certificate; please get in touch with CPO Services if you have any questions. 

For those with questions about ELDs, load securement, or other transportation-related issues, our local 
Peace Officers will be on-site and eager to assist. 

Event Details: 
• Dates & Locations: 

• April 3: Rainy Creek Shop, located on Rainy Creek Road near RR 3-0, from 9:00 AM to 
3:00 PM. 

• April 4: Tees Shop, located at the intersection of Hwy 12 and Hwy 821, Tees, from 9:00 
AM to 3:00 PM. 
 



 

• Additional Information: 
• Refreshments and lunch will be provided. 
• We welcome you to drop in anytime between 9:00 AM and 3:00 PM. However, booking 

in advance is recommended to ensure priority; drop-ins will be accommodated as 
possible. 

• For those bringing multiple vehicles, please stagger your arrivals by approximately 20 
minutes to facilitate a smooth process. 

 
For more information or to book your inspection time, please call 403-782-8959 or email 
tgessleman@lacombecounty.com. We look forward to your participation in making our roads safer for 
everyone. 

For more information, please contact: 

Ray Kawai 
Community Peace Officer/CVSA – Certified Roadside Inspector 
Lacombe County 
Email: rkawai@lacombecounty.com  
Phone: 403-782-8959 

mailto:rkawai@lacombecounty.com






For more information visit alberta.ca/regulated-property-assessment-model-engagement

Regulated property assessment model review (AMR)

The Assessment Model Review process will update Alberta’s regulated property assessment system resulting in fairer valuation 
of regulated property.

Stakeholder Engagement

STAGE 1
Design the plan  
2023

Municipalities and industry property owners will have the opportunity to 
provide input on assessment and taxation impacts, including how to best 
implement any shifts in assessment. The Steering Committee will review  
the engagement results and provide final recommendations to  
government.

A stakeholder Steering Committee made up of industry, municipal, and 
assessment representatives designed an engagement process for the 
broader review.

STAGE 2
Review foundational 
policies 
March – December  
2024

STAGE 3
Update assessment 
models 
Expected winter 2025 – 
summer 2027

Telecommunications  
& Cable

Railway

Electric Power

We will engage with a technical working group, comprised of stakeholder 
subject-matter experts to update the costs, practices, and technologies in the 
assessment model for each property type.

Machinery and Equipment

Pipeline

Wells

Group 1
winter 2025 to spring 2026

Group 2 
spring 2026 to summer 2027

Confirm Principles

Review Construction Cost Reporting Guide

Before the assessment models for individual property types can be updated,
regulated assessment policies must be reviewed first.

Recommend Assessment Year Modifier 
methodology

STAGE 4
Consider the impacts 
Expected summer 2027 – 
spring 2028

Key municipal, industry, and assessment stakeholders will be engaged during each stage of the AMR process.  
For any questions, please contact the AMR Team at ma.amr@gov.ab.ca.

http://alberta.ca/regulated-property-assessment-model-engagement
mailto:ma.amr%40gov.ab.ca?subject=


©2024 Government of Alberta  |  March 20, 2024  |  Communications and Public Engagement 

 Classification: Public 

  
Frequently Asked Questions 
Assessment Model Review 

What are the 
properties that will be 

reviewed during the 
Assessment Model 

Review (AMR)? 

 Regulated properties, which include electric power systems, 
telecommunication and cable systems, pipelines, wells, and 
railway will be reviewed during the AMR process. 

When will the results 
of the AMR be 
implemented?  

 

 
Any government decisions on any changes to assessment 
models would be sought in spring or summer 2028, with 
implementation to follow. 

The last model 
review was paused; 
how will this one be 

different? 

 
In general, the previous attempts to review assessment models 
relied too heavily on a technical approach without a clear plan to 
broadly engage stakeholders in all phases of the process.  

This one will be different, as this engagement approach seeks to 
mitigate potential controversy to the extent possible through a 
clear transparent stakeholder-driven process. Assessment 
discussions will be principle- and evidence-based, and will be 
separate from discussion of potential tax impacts and mitigation 
strategies for any resulting assessment changes.  

The stakeholder steering committee that designed the 
engagement plan for this review will also work throughout the 
process to ensure the input of the represented stakeholders is 
considered, and will work according to jointly draft guiding 
principles to resolve challenges. 

How are 
stakeholders able to 

participate? 

 Stakeholders are encouraged to provide feedback during each 
specific stage of the AMR process, either through their steering 
committee representative (list provided below) or by sending their 
comments to the AMR Team at ma.amr@gov.ab.ca. 

How will we know the 
status/updates of the 

AMR process? 

 

 
Status updates will be communicated to steering committee 
representatives (list provided below) and posted to the AMR 
website at https://www.alberta.ca/regulated-property-
assessment-model-engagement.   

mailto:ma.amr@gov.ab.ca
https://www.alberta.ca/regulated-property-assessment-model-engagement
https://www.alberta.ca/regulated-property-assessment-model-engagement


©2024 Government of Alberta  |  March 20, 2024  |  Communications and Public Engagement 

 Classification: Public 

Which groups are 
impacted by the 
AMR process? 

 

 
Municipalities and regulated property owners may be impacted 
by changes in assessment values at the conclusion of the AMR 
process. 

What are the 
timelines for the 
AMR process?  

 

 
The review of AMR Principles, Assessment Year Modifiers, and 
the Construction Cost Reporting Guide will occur in 2024. 
Government will consider any resulting policy and regulatory 
changes in early 2025.  

Reviews of the assessment models for individual regulated 
property types will then occur in two stages, from 2025-27.  

Following this, we will begin broader engagement to 
comprehensively consider and understand the potential 
assessment and tax impacts of the new models. We will work 
with stakeholders to evaluate any mitigation or implementation 
strategies required.  

Final government decisions on any changes to assessment 
models would be sought in 2028.  

For further details please visit https://www.alberta.ca/regulated-
property-assessment-model-engagement.   

Have tax implications 
been considered for 

the AMR process? 

 

 
Following preparation of new assessment models, broad 
engagement will be initiated with municipalities and industry 
groups. Stakeholders will have the opportunity to provide input 
during this stage of the process. 

Final government decisions on any changes to assessment 
models would be sought after this input is received and 
considered. 

Who is the main 
government contact 

for the AMR 
process? 

 
To contact Municipal Affairs during the AMR process, please 
contact the AMR Team toll-free by first dialing 310-0000, then 
780-422-1377, or at ma.amr@gov.ab.ca. 

https://www.alberta.ca/regulated-property-assessment-model-engagement
https://www.alberta.ca/regulated-property-assessment-model-engagement
mailto:ma.amr@gov.ab.ca


©2024 Government of Alberta  |  March 20, 2024  |  Communications and Public Engagement 

 Classification: Public 

Which stakeholder 
groups are 

represented on the 
steering committee? 

 

 
The steering committee is comprised of representatives from the 
following organizations: 

- Alberta Assessors’ Association 
- Alberta Federation of Rural Electrification Associations 
- Alberta Municipalities 
- Alberta Rural Municipal Administrators’ Association 
- Bell MTS 
- Canadian Association of Petroleum Producers 
- Canadian National Railway Company 
- Canadian Pacific Railway Company 
- Canadian Property Tax Association 
- Canadian Renewable Energy Association 
- Capital Power 
- Chemistry Industry Association of Canada 
- Explorers and Producers Association of Canada 
- Federation of Gas Co-ops 
- FORTIS Alberta 
- Independent Power Producers Society of Alberta 
- Local Government Administration Association of Alberta 
- Northeast Capital Industry Association 
- Pipeline Property Tax Group 
- Rogers Communications 
- Rural Municipalities of Alberta 
- TELUS 

 

 


	Agenda -March 26, 2024 - Regular Council Meeting.pdf
	March 26, 2024- Regular Meeting of Council - Minutes of March 12, 2024
	Cheque Listing 20240167 to 20240208
	Council Remuneration Listing February 2024
	New Business - Year in Review 2023  Sylvan Lake and Area Urgent Care Committee V3 (1) (1) (6) (1)
	New Business March 26, 2024 - Bentley Arena Ice Plant Replacement Recommendation
	Attachment #1 - Arena Slab and Ice Plant Study 2021
	Correspondance - Lacombe County Council Highlights March 14, 2024
	Correspondance - Lacombe County Council Highlights Special Meeting March 14, 2024
	Correspondance - Lacombe County Volunteer - Farm Vehicle Safety Checks
	Correspondance - Minister McIver Assessment Model Review



